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Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Board of Directors 

Iowa Student Loan Liquidity Corporation: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate 

discretely presented component units of Iowa Student Loan Liquidity Corporation (the Corporation), as of and 

for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 

collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and 

maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 

audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 

General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 

of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we 

express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 

the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

unmodified and modified audit opinions. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units 

The financial statements of Link Capital Partners LLC (Link) have not been audited, and we were not engaged 

to audit the Link financial statements as part of our audit of the Corporation’s basic financial statements. Link’s 

financial activities are included in the Corporation’s basic financial statements as a discretely presented 

component unit and represent 0.5%, (6.6)%, and 12.5% and 76%, (11%), and 1% of the assets, net position, 

and revenues, of the Corporation’s aggregate discretely presented component units as of and for the years 

ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
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Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion on the 

Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units paragraph, the financial statements referred to above 

present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the aggregate discretely presented component 

units of Iowa Student Loan Liquidity Corporation, as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in financial 

position thereof for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

Unmodified Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 

financial position of the business-type activities and the remaining aggregate discretely presented component 

unit of Iowa Student Loan Liquidity Corporation as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the respective changes in 

financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that management’s discussion and analysis on 

pages 4-13 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of 

the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it 

to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 

operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 

supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 

comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 

statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 

express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 

us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 26, 2017, 

on our consideration of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 

The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 

reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on compliance. That report is an integral part of 

an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Corporation’s 

internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

Des Moines, Iowa 

October 26, 2017 
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This section of the Iowa Student Loan Liquidity Corporation’s (the Corporation) annual financial statements 

presents management’s discussion and analysis of the financial position and results of operations for the fiscal 

years ended June 30, 2017 (FY17) and 2016 (FY16). This information is being presented to provide additional 

information regarding the activities of the Corporation. This discussion and analysis should be read in 

conjunction with the independent auditors’ report of KPMG LLP, the financial statements, and the 

accompanying notes. 

Financial Highlights 

 Purchased, originated or converted over $1,122.6 million in student loans under both its owned and 

serviced student loan portfolio. 

 Issued over $221.5 million in new bonds and notes payable. 

 Retired over $178.4 million in bonds and notes payable. 

 Provided over $1.3 million in community reinvestment funds. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The financial statements consist of management’s discussion and analysis (this section) and the basic financial 

statements. The basic financial statements include statements of net position; statements of revenues, 

expenses, and changes in net position; statements of cash flows; and notes to financial statements. 

The statements of net position present information on all of the Corporation’s assets, deferred outflows, 

liabilities, and deferred inflows with the difference between the four reported as net position. Over time, 

increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 

Corporation is improving or deteriorating. 

The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position present information showing how the 

Corporation’s net position changed during FY17 and FY16. 

The statements of cash flows report the cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from 

operating, capital and related financing activities, and investing activities. 
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Condensed Financial Information 

The following tables present condensed financial information for FY17 and FY16 for the Corporation as a 

whole. The financial information includes net position and revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

Net Position

June 30, 2017 and 2016

(In millions of dollars)

2017 2016

Assets:

Cash $ 2.5 5.0

Investments 241.4 132.9

Student loans receivable, net 1,297.0 1,362.8

Accrued interest receivable 23.1 19.1

Other receivables 13.7 14.4

Other assets 2.8 2.8

Capital assets, net 12.6 12.0

Due from Link Capital Partners, LLC 2.9 53.4

Investment in Aspire Resources Inc 35.3 8.9

Investment in Link Capital Partners, LLC 0.1 0.5

Total assets 1,631.4 1,611.8

Deferred outflows of resources:

Accumulated decrease in fair value of

hedging derivative 2.4 —

Total deferred outflows 2.4 —

Total assets and deferred outflows $ 1,633.8 1,611.8

Liabilities:

Other accounts payable and accrued expenses 6.6 2.8

Accrued interest payable 2.0 1.7

Notes payable, net 65.8 47.4

Bonds payable, net 982.8 957.1

Due to Aspire Resources Inc 2.3 4.5

Total liabilities 1,059.5 1,013.5
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Net Position

June 30, 2017 and 2016

(In millions of dollars)

2017 2016

Deferred inflows of resources:

Accumulated increase in fair value of

hedging derivative $ — 6.9

Refundable origination fees 1.4 3.2

Deferred gain on refunded debt 63.0 81.7

Total deferred inflows 64.4 91.8

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 12.6 12.0

Restricted, student loan purchase program 292.3 283.1

Unrestricted, board designated 205.0 211.4

Total net position 509.9 506.5

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position $ 1,633.8 1,611.8

 

Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(In millions of dollars)

2017 2016

Operating revenues:

Investment income $ 2.0 4.6

Net increase (decrease)in fair value of investments 0.9 (0.4)

Student loan interest income 57.3 56.8

Other student loan revenue 0.6 2.3

Other income 4.7 4.3

Income from Aspire Resources Inc 0.4 1.7

Loss from Link Capital Partners, LLC (0.4) (1.7)

Total operating revenues 65.5 67.6
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Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(In millions of dollars)

2017 2016

Operating expenses (income):

Interest on bonds and notes payable $ 32.8 29.4

Amortization of deferred gain on refunded debt (18.7) (18.0)

Debt-related expenses 3.8 0.8

General and administrative 37.0 37.3

Provision for loan losses 7.2 8.4

Total operating expenses 62.1 57.9

Operating income 3.4 9.7

Net position at beginning of year 506.5 496.8

Net position at end of year $ 509.9 506.5

 

Financial Analysis – 2017 

Total Assets – Total assets and deferred outflows ended FY17 at $1.634 billion, a decrease of 1.36% 

($21.9 million) as compared to the FY16 amount of $1.612 billion. Cash and investments increased 76.81% 

($106.0 million) compared to FY16. Cash used for normal on-going operating expenditures, debt service, and 

loan funding exceeded student loan payment collection accumulations. This was offset by proceeds received 

through the issuance of new bonds and notes payable. Net student loans receivable decreased 4.83% 

($65.8 million) to $1.297 billion compared to $1.363 billion at June 30, 2016. This decrease is primarily due to 

borrower cash receipts in excess of loan additions and capitalized borrower interest. The Corporation has 

purchased or originated $125.8 million in student loans during FY17, an increase from the $15.3 million during 

the same period in FY16. Due from Link Capital Partners, LLC (Link) decreased $50.5 million primarily due to 

cash receipts from Link, a component unit, to pay down a loan funding line of credit. Investment in Aspire 

Resources Inc (ARI), a component unit, increased $26.4 million primarily due to additional paid-in capital 

totaling $26.1 million. ARI’s investment income and loan servicing revenue of $17.6 million exceeded general 

and administrative expenses of $17.2 million during FY17. ARI’s servicing revenue included $13.4 million of 

fees from the Corporation to service its student loan portfolio. 

Total Liabilities – Total liabilities increased 4.54% ($46.0 million) as compared to FY16. Debt activity makes up 

most of this change. Bond and note maturities totaled $178.4 million and were offset by the issuance of bonds 

and notes payable totaling $221.6 million resulting in a net debt increase totaling $44.1 million. 

Deferred inflows of resources, which includes the accumulated increase in fair value of hedging derivative, 

refundable origination fees and deferred gains on refunded debt activities, was $64.4 million at the end of FY17 

compared to an ending FY16 balance of $91.8 million. This is a 29.82% ($27.4 million) decrease. Accumulated 

increase in fair value of hedging derivatives shifted from $6.9 million balance at the end of FY16 to a 

$2.4 million accumulated decrease in fair value of a hedging derivative. The refundable origination fee change 
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($1.8 million) is primarily due to normal amortization. Deferred gain on refunded debt activity includes 

amortization of deferred gain on refunded debt totaling $18.7 million. 

Net Position – Net position of the Corporation increased 0.67% ($3.4 million) during FY17 to $509.9 million 

from an ending FY16 balance of $506.5 million. Positive net interest margins contributed to positive operating 

income, leading to the increase in net position. 

Total Operating Revenues – The Corporation earned $65.5 million in total operating revenues during FY17, a 

decrease of 3.08% ($2.1 million) from FY16. Investment income decreased $2.6 million compared to the 

amount in FY16. Most of this difference is attributable to one-time investment gains ($2.4 million) in FY16 on 

the release of final funds related to defaulted investments from 2007 that were not repeated during FY17. 

Investment fair value adjustments improved over the FY16 amount ($1.3 million). Student loan interest income 

increased 0.82% ($0.5 million) compared to FY16. The Corporation’s average owned outstanding student loan 

portfolio decreased by 5.91% ($95.3 million) in FY17. This outstanding balance decline and impacts to student 

loan interest income was offset by better yields (44 bps). Borrower interest allowance adjustments on defaulted 

private loans reduced student loan interest income by $4.4 million in FY17. 

Total Operating Expenses – The Corporation’s total operating expenses for FY17 increased 7.28% 

($4.2 million) over FY16 totals. Total interest expense on bonds and notes payable during FY17 increased 

11.60% ($3.4 million) from FY16. Average debt outstanding decreased from FY16 to FY17 by $39.5 million 

(3.53%). This was offset by increased debt yields during FY17 by 0.43% and contributed to increased debt 

interest expense. Additionally, debt-related expenses increased in FY17 by $3.0 million compared with the 

FY16 amount. Most of this increase relates to additional cost of issuance expense incurred during FY17 

compared to FY16 due to new debt. The provision for loan losses (related primarily to private loans) decreased 

in FY17 by $1.2 million when compared to FY16. 

Major Financing and Long-Term Debt Activity 

The following list details the major financing activity of the Corporation during FY17: 

Date Amount Type of activity

7/11/2016 $ 862,790  Principal payment on notes payable

7/15/2016 846  Principal payment on notes payable

7/19/2016 (5,606) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

7/25/2016 3,289,698  Principal payment on bonds payable

8/1/2016 26  Principal payment on notes payable

8/10/2016 947,213  Principal payment on notes payable

8/16/2016 (6,038) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

8/18/2016 (6,939) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

8/25/2016 (7,211) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

8/25/2016 4,044,981  Principal payment on bonds payable

8/30/2016 —  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

8/30/2016 175,000  Principal payment on bonds payable
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Date Amount Type of activity

8/31/2016 $ (4,150) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

9/2/2016 (7,000) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

9/12/2016 1,062,132  Principal payment on notes payable

9/15/2016 47  Principal payment on notes payable

9/21/2016 (4,880) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

9/26/2016 (3,050) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

9/26/2016 13,992,046  Principal payment on bonds payable

10/1/2016 68  Principal payment on notes payable

10/5/2016 (6,000) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

10/11/2016 983,371  Principal payment on notes payable

10/12/2016 (8,500,000) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

10/15/2016 2,662  Principal payment on notes payable

10/21/2016 (13,159) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

10/25/2016 (188,750,000) New issue – Taxable student loan revenue bonds

10/25/2016 4,923,846  Principal payment on bonds payable

11/1/2016 11  Principal payment on notes payable

11/7/2016 (3,532) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

11/8/2016 (7,140) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

11/10/2016 917,795  Principal payment on notes payable

11/14/2016 (10,070) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

11/15/2016 3,341  Principal payment on notes payable

11/17/2016 (5,308) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

11/18/2016 (941) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

11/22/2016 (3,190) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

11/23/2016 (7,604) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

11/25/2016 3,293,151  Principal payment on bonds payable

12/1/2016 52,460,000  Principal payment on bonds payable

12/6/2016 (3,319) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

12/8/2016 (5,153) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

12/9/2016 (19,282) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

12/12/2016 845,148  Principal payment on notes payable

12/15/2016 15,925  Principal payment on notes payable

12/27/2016 12,577,130  Principal payment on bonds payable

1/4/2017 (46,315) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

1/10/2017 (46,448) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

1/10/2017 1,167,747  Principal payment on notes payable

1/13/2017 (8,460,000) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

1/17/2017 (3,381) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

1/17/2017 396  Principal payment on notes payable

1/25/2017 (10,909) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

1/25/2017 3,617,845  Principal payment on bonds payable

1/27/2017 (27,544) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans
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Date Amount Type of activity

2/10/2017 $ 1,525,580  Principal payment on notes payable

2/15/2017 (807) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

2/15/2017 72  Principal payment on notes payable

2/17/2017 (17,551) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

2/23/2017 —  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

2/24/2017 (81,317) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

2/27/2017 4,013,220  Principal payment on bonds payable

3/6/2017 21  Principal payment on notes payable

3/10/2017 1,234,563  Principal payment on notes payable

3/13/2017 (3,380) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

3/15/2017 (3,380) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

3/15/2017 4,535  Principal payment on notes payable

3/27/2017 13,146,086  Principal payment on bonds payable

4/10/2017 1,496,938  Principal payment on notes payable

4/13/2017 (8,731,755) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

4/17/2017 372  Principal payment on notes payable

4/25/2017 3,732,808  Principal payment on bonds payable

5/9/2017 (6,473) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

5/10/2017 1,551,111  Principal payment on notes payable

5/15/2017 (2,700) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

5/15/2017 2,420  Principal payment on notes payable

5/24/2017 (4,342) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

5/25/2017 3,405,073  Principal payment on bonds payable

6/1/2017 27,390,000  Principal payment on bonds payable

6/1/2017 373  Principal payment on notes payable

6/5/2017 (5,000) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

6/12/2017 1,712,836  Principal payment on notes payable

6/13/2017 (6,735,545) Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans

6/15/2017 4,346  Principal payment on notes payable

6/26/2017 14,015,397  Principal payment on bonds payable

 

Financial Analysis – 2016 

Total Assets – Total assets and deferred outflows ended FY16 at $1.6 billion, a decrease of 10.54% 

($190 million) as compared to the FY15 amount of $1.8 billion. Cash and investments decreased 37.74% 

($83.6 million) compared to FY15. Cash used for normal on-going operating expenditures, debt service, and 

loan funding exceeded student loan payment collection accumulations and servicing fee receipts. Net student 

loans receivable decreased 11.22% ($172.4 million) to $1.4 billion compared to $1.5 billion at June 30, 2015. 

This decrease is primarily due to borrower cash receipts in excess of loan additions and capitalized borrower 

interest. The Corporation has purchased or originated $15.3 million in student loans during FY16, an increase 

from the $14.8 million during the same period in FY15. Other receivables increased $14.1 million due to the 

issuance of a new letter of credit ($7.3 million) and the accumulated increase in fair value of hedging 

derivatives ($7.0 million). Investment in Aspire Resources Inc component unit increased 22.70% ($1.7 million) 
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as loan servicing revenue earned by the component unit of $23.6 million exceeded general and administrative 

expenses of $21.9 million during FY16. The Aspire Resources Inc servicing revenue included $13.9 million of 

fees from the Corporation to service its student loan portfolio. Investment in Link Capital Partners LLC 

decreased 77.27% ($1.7 million) due to losses incurred by the component unit as it works through initial 

start-up costs. 

Total Liabilities – Total liabilities decreased 15.51% ($186.1 million) as compared to FY15. Debt activity makes 

up most of this change. Bond and note maturities exceeded new debt issuances during the year resulting in a 

net decrease in debt outstanding totaling $186.2 million. Other accounts payable and accrued expenses 

decreased 48.15% ($2.6 million). 

Deferred inflows of resources, which includes the accumulated increase in fair value of hedging derivative, 

refundable origination fees and deferred gains on refunded debt activities, was $91.8 million at the end of FY16 

compared to an ending FY15 balance of $105.8 million. This is a 13.24% ($14.0 million) decrease. The 

refundable origination fee change ($3.0 million) is primarily due to normal amortization. Deferred gain on 

refunded debt activity includes amortization of deferred gain on refunded debt totaling $18.0 million. The fair 

value of the hedging derivative at the end of FY16 was $6.9 million. 

Net Position – Net position of the Corporation increased 1.95% ($9.7 million) during FY16 to $506.5 million 

from an ending FY15 balance of $496.8 million. Positive net interest margins and a reduction in operating 

expenses both contributed to positive operating income, leading to the increase in net position. 

Total Operating Revenues – The Corporation earned $67.6 million in total operating revenues during FY16, an 

increase of 7.81% ($4.9 million) from FY15. Investment income increased $4.3 million over the amount in 

FY15. Most of this increase is attributable to investment gains ($2.4 million) on the release of final funds related 

to defaulted investments from 2007. Investment fair value adjustments improved over the FY15 amount 

($5.6 million). Student loan interest income decreased 4.21% ($2.5 million) compared to FY15. The 

Corporation’s average owned outstanding student loan portfolio dropped by 10.06% ($180.1 million) in FY16. 

Borrower interest allowance adjustments on defaulted private loans reduced student loan interest income by 

$1.9 million in FY16. Other income decreased 15.69% ($0.8 million) due a decrease in income earned for 

services provided to Aspire Resources Inc. 

Total Operating Expenses – The Corporation’s total operating expenses for FY16 increased 0.87% 

($0.5 million) over FY15 totals. Total interest expense on bonds and notes payable during FY16 decreased 

4.55% ($1.4 million) from FY15 due primarily to a decrease in average debt outstanding from FY15 to FY16 of 

$162.1 million (12.65%). Additionally, debt-related expenses decreased in FY16 by $0.8 million compared with 

the FY15 amount. Most of this decrease relates to less cost of issuance expense incurred during FY16 

compared to FY15. The FY16 amortization of deferred gain on refunded debt was $18.0 million, a decrease of 

6.25% ($1.2 million). Most of this change is due to differences in debt maturities that change the annual 

amortization amounts. The provision for loan losses (related primarily to private loans) increased in FY16 by 

$3.5 million when compared to FY15. General default trends and additional loans maturing into a repayment 

status contributed to this increase. 
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Major Financing and Long-Term Debt Activity 

The following list details the major financing activity of the Corporation during FY16: 

Date Amount Type of activity

7/6/2015 $ 2,315  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

7/7/2015 2,315  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

7/8/2015 4,400  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

7/10/2015 (860,564) Principal payment on notes payable

7/15/2015 2,315  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

7/15/2015 (1,316) Principal payment on notes payable

7/16/2015 2,315  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

7/27/2015 (5,327,755) Principal payment on bonds payable

8/10/2015 (957,204) Principal payment on notes payable

8/17/2015 (249) Principal payment on notes payable

8/25/2015 19,370  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

8/25/2015 (4,536,216) Principal payment on bonds payable

8/27/2015 6,479  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

9/3/2015 6,000  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

9/4/2015 7,500  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

9/9/2015 3,750  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

9/10/2015 (900,155) Principal payment on notes payable

9/14/2015 3,000  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

9/15/2015 (7,995) Principal payment on notes payable

9/17/2015 11,458  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

9/22/2015 2,785  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

9/24/2015 4,250  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

9/25/2015 (17,170,907) Principal payment on bonds payable

9/29/2015 3,824  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

10/1/2015 3,693  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

10/8/2015 4,836  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

10/13/2015 3,000  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

10/13/2015 (783,409) Principal payment on notes payable

10/15/2015 5,933  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

10/15/2015 (408) Principal payment on notes payable

10/16/2015 3,334  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

10/26/2015 3,023  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

10/26/2015 (4,308,417) Principal payment on bonds payable

11/3/2015 1,329  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

11/10/2015 (875,702) Principal payment on notes payable

11/13/2015 2,224  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

11/16/2015 6,229  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

11/16/2015 (3,013) Principal payment on notes payable
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Date Amount Type of activity

11/20/2015 $ 3,500  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

11/25/2015 (5,113,914) Principal payment on bonds payable

12/1/2015 (51,885,000) Principal payment on bonds payable

12/7/2015 4,866  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

12/10/2015 (826,955) Principal payment on notes payable

12/18/2015 10,000  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

12/28/2015 (13,852,199) Principal payment on bonds payable

1/5/2016 60,489  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

1/6/2016 2,500  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

1/11/2016 (874,978) Principal payment on notes payable

1/13/2016 45,138  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

1/15/2016 (122) Principal payment on notes payable

1/20/2016 18,024  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

1/21/2016 21,273  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

1/25/2016 6,293  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

1/25/2016 (4,522,044) Principal payment on bonds payable

1/29/2016 4,976  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

2/10/2016 (916,421) Principal payment on notes payable

2/15/2016 (39) Principal payment on notes payable

2/17/2016 3,481  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

2/18/2016 1,804  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

2/25/2016 (4,482,774) Principal payment on bonds payable

3/7/2016 3,097  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

3/10/2016 (1,040,031) Principal payment on notes payable

3/11/2016 8,314  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

3/14/2016 4,673  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

3/15/2016 (1,659) Principal payment on notes payable

3/16/2016 4,190  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

3/25/2016 (16,688,667) Principal payment on bonds payable

3/28/2016 2,640  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

3/29/2016 2,640  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

4/5/2016 2,000  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

4/11/2016 (1,071,334) Principal payment on notes payable

4/15/2016 (1,698) Principal payment on notes payable

4/25/2016 258,231  Funding draw on commercial note used to fund student loans.

4/25/2016 (4,552,462) Principal payment on bonds payable

5/10/2016 (964,524) Principal payment on notes payable

5/16/2016 (544) Principal payment on notes payable

5/25/2016 (4,643,131) Principal payment on bonds payable

6/1/2016 (25,160,000) Principal payment on bonds payable

6/10/2016 (997,936) Principal payment on notes payable

6/15/2016 (15,624) Principal payment on notes payable

6/27/2016 (14,581,830) Principal payment on bonds payable
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IOWA STUDENT LOAN LIQUIDITY CORPORATION

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Link Link

Component Component

Corporation Unit Corporation Unit

Business- Aspire December 31, Business- Aspire December 31,

Type Component 2017 Type Component 2016

Assets Activities Unit (unaudited) Activities Unit (unaudited)

Current assets:

Cash (note 2) $ 2,510,171  8,653,826  156,285  5,043,364  2,966,887  568,414  

Assets held by trustee (substantially restricted):

Investments (note 2) 228,499,393  384,050  —  113,184,772  981  —  

Student loans receivable, net (note 3) 185,172,942  —  —  165,376,857  —  1,499,167  

Accrued interest receivable 14,064,725  41,700  —  11,931,407  —  17,268  

Other receivables 8,236,419  547,063  —  14,431,202  606,756  378  

Other assets 1,383,325  272,253  16,304  1,360,376  170,774  113,466  

Due from Corporation 2,304,364  —  —  4,501,909  —  

Due from Link Capital Partners LLC 2,905,801  —  —  53,440,417  —  —  

Total current assets 442,772,776  12,203,256  172,589  364,768,395  8,247,307  2,198,693  

Noncurrent assets:

Assets held by trustee (substantially restricted):

Investments (note 2) 12,933,848  25,881,357  —  19,737,692  —  —  

Student loans receivable, net (note 3) 1,111,839,669  —  —  1,197,396,045  —  33,482,738  

Accrued interest receivable 9,025,310  —  —  7,154,666  —  212,079  

Other receivables 5,500,000  —  —  —  —  —  

Other assets 1,329,982  439,520  —  1,408,495  756,744  236,202  

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization 12,558,835  3,014,121  27,560  11,995,550  2,400,523  50,846  

Investment in Aspire Resources Inc 35,314,136  —  —  8,875,961  —  —  

Investment in Link Capital Partners LLC 71,678  —  —  462,801  —  —  

Total noncurrent assets 1,188,573,458  29,334,998  27,560  1,247,031,210  3,157,267  33,981,865  

Total assets 1,631,346,234  41,538,254  200,149  1,611,799,605  11,404,574  36,180,558  

Deferred outflows of resources:

Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivative 2,446,669  —  —  —  —  —  

Total deferred outflows 2,446,669  —  —  —  —  —  

Total assets and deferred outflows $ 1,633,792,903  41,538,254  200,149  1,611,799,605  11,404,574  36,180,558  

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position

Current liabilities:

Other accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 6,556,835  6,224,118  77,738  2,785,374  2,528,613  988,978  

Accrued interest payable 1,986,732  —  45,607  1,722,563  —  97,269  

Notes payable, net (note 4) 14,927,220  —  250,586  8,861,476  —  —  

Bonds payable, net (note 4) 103,390,211  —  —  110,224,034  —  —  

Due to Aspire Resources Inc 2,304,364  —  —  4,501,909  —  —  

Due to Corporation —  —  1,997,116  —  —  36,000,375  

Total current liabilities 129,165,362  6,224,118  2,371,047  128,095,356  2,528,613  37,086,622  

Noncurrent liabilities:

Notes payable, net (note 4) 50,895,549  —  —  38,487,289  —  —  

Bonds payable, net (note 4) 879,406,269  —  —  846,897,333  —  —  

Total noncurrent liabilities 930,301,818  —  —  885,384,622  —  —  

Total liabilities 1,059,467,180  6,224,118  2,371,047  1,013,479,978  2,528,613  37,086,622  

Deferred inflows of resources:

Accumulated increase in fair value of hedging derivative —  —  —  6,955,529  —  —  

Refundable origination fees 1,443,602  —  —  3,187,120  —  —  

Deferred gain on refunded debt 62,984,836  —  —  81,663,739  —  —  

Total deferred inflows of resources 64,428,438  —  —  91,806,388  —  —  

Commitments and contingencies (note 6)

Net position (deficit) (note 8):

Net investment in capital assets 12,558,835  —  —  11,995,550  —  —  

Restricted, student loan purchase program 292,278,564  —  —  283,157,446  —  —  

Unrestricted, board designated 205,059,886  35,314,136  (2,170,898) 211,360,243  8,875,961  (906,064) 

Total net position (deficit) 509,897,285  35,314,136  (2,170,898) 506,513,239  8,875,961  (906,064) 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and

net position $ 1,633,792,903  41,538,254  200,149  1,611,799,605  11,404,574  36,180,558  

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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IOWA STUDENT LOAN LIQUIDITY CORPORATION

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Link Link

Component Component

Unit Unit

Corporation Year ended Corporation Year ended

Business- Aspire December 31, Business- Aspire December 31,

Type Component 2017 Type Component 2016

Activities Unit (unaudited) Activities Unit (unaudited)

Operating revenues:

Investment income $ 1,984,850  253,182  —  4,562,660  —  —  

Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 927,785  —  —  (402,853) —  —  

Student loan interest income 57,275,936  —  2,513,525  56,808,585  —  206,320  

Other student loan revenue 613,497  —  —  2,360,920  —  —  

Loan servicing income —  17,374,723  —  —  23,563,830  —  

Other income 4,685,440  —  10,578  4,316,870  —  17,441  

Income from Aspire Resources Inc 385,232  —  —  1,642,209  —  —  

Loss from Link Capital Partners LLC (391,122) —  —  (1,727,770) —  —  

Total operating revenues 65,481,618  17,627,905  2,524,103  67,560,621  23,563,830  223,761  

Operating expenses (income):

Interest on bonds and notes payable 32,821,090  —  1,780,459  29,409,869  —  205,947  

Amortization of deferred gain on refunded debt (18,678,903) —  —  (17,965,458) —  —  

Debt-related expenses 3,783,395  —  —  810,447  —  —  

General and administrative (note 5) 37,020,031  17,242,673  2,008,478  37,250,748  21,921,621  3,660,276  

Provision for loan losses (note 3) 7,151,957  —  —  8,378,767  —  —  

Total operating expenses 62,097,570  17,242,673  3,788,937  57,884,373  21,921,621  3,866,223  

Income before other financing sources 3,384,048  385,232  (1,264,834) 9,676,248  1,642,209  (3,642,462) 

Other financing sources:

Capital contributions —  26,052,943  —  —  9,961,629  —  

Increase (decrease) in net position 3,384,048  26,438,175  (1,264,834) 9,676,248  11,603,838  (3,642,462) 

Net position, beginning of year 506,513,239  8,875,961  (906,064) 496,836,991  (2,727,877) 2,736,398  

Net position (deficit), end of year $ 509,897,287  35,314,136  (2,170,898) 506,513,239  8,875,961  (906,064) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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IOWA STUDENT LOAN LIQUIDITY CORPORATION

Statement of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Cash flows from operating activities:

Principal receipts on student loans $ 196,090,524  193,333,314  

Interest receipts on student loans 40,797,926  42,161,774  

Origination and purchase of student loans (125,796,883) (15,272,965) 

Cash receipts for fees, net (476,506) (625,004) 

Payments to employees (8,996,050) (16,726,606) 

Payments to vendors (25,349,707) (22,866,182) 

Payments from (payments to) Link Capital Partners LLC 45,225,799  (53,440,417) 

(Payments to) receipts from Aspire Resources Inc 2,292,830  3,200,700  

Other (930,552) 43,897  

Net cash provided by operating activities 122,857,381  129,808,511  

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of bonds 188,750,000  —  

Repayment of bonds (164,076,281) (176,825,316) 

Interest paid on bonds (31,555,526) (28,589,408) 

Proceeds from issuance of notes 32,816,688  609,379  

Repayment of notes (14,342,684) (11,127,454) 

Payments for debt service costs (829,463) (802,109) 

Payments for bond issuance costs (2,984,840) (70,872) 

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 7,777,894  (216,805,780) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition of capital assets (2,294,210) (656,978) 

Cash used in capital and related financing activities (2,294,210) (656,978) 

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of investments (4,825,308) (11,211,276) 

Interest received on investments 3,700,817  4,144,700  

Maturities of investments 2,875,688  44,654,824  

Net cash provided investing activities 1,751,197  37,588,248  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 130,092,262  (50,065,999) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 100,917,302  150,983,301  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 231,009,564  100,917,302  

Reconciliation of operating income to cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income $ 3,384,048  9,676,248  

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Net (increase) decrease in fair value of investments (927,785) 402,853  

Depreciation and amortization on capital assets 1,730,925  1,994,428  

Interest income from investments (1,984,850) (4,562,660) 

Income from Aspire Resources Inc (385,232) (1,642,209) 

Loss from Link Capital Partners LLC 391,122  1,727,770  

Amortization of deferred gain on refunded debt (18,678,903) (17,965,458) 

Interest expense on bonds and notes payable 32,821,090  29,409,869  

Debt-related expenses 3,783,395  810,447  

Decrease in student loans receivable, net 65,760,291  172,440,910  

Increase in accrued interest receivable (4,003,962) (1,273,316) 

Decrease (increase) in due from Link Capital Partners LLC 50,534,616  (53,440,417) 

Increase in other receivables (6,260,746) (7,252,772) 

Disposal of capital assets —  433  

Decrease (increase) in other assets 55,564  (1,813,181) 

Increase in other accounts payable and accrued expenses 477,171  1,109,699  

(Decrease) increase in due to Aspire Resources Inc (2,197,545) 3,200,700  

Decrease in refundable origination fees (1,743,518) (3,014,833) 

Other 101,700  —  

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 122,857,381  129,808,511  

Noncash activity:

Contribution of Investments to Aspire Resources Inc 26,052,943  —  

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Reporting Entity 

The Iowa Student Loan Liquidity Corporation (the Corporation) was incorporated in 1979 as a private 

nonprofit corporation for the purpose of providing funds for the acquisition of student loan notes 

incurred under the United States Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended, and to provide 

procedures for servicing such notes. 

The Corporation’s board of directors is appointed by the Governor of the State of Iowa. The State of 

Iowa’s accountability does not extend beyond the appointment of the board of directors, and therefore, 

the Corporation is not a component unit of the State of Iowa. Pursuant to Section 7C.4A(3) of the Code 

of Iowa, the Corporation has the ability to directly issue debt that pays interest, which is exempt from 

federal taxation. 

Pursuant to the action of the Legislature of the State of Iowa, the Corporation is also empowered to 

finance and originate alternative education loans in addition to those permitted under the United States 

Higher Education Act of 1965. 

The Corporation has no taxing authority. Bonds and notes issued do not constitute a debt, liability of, 

obligation of, or a pledge of the faith and credit of the State of Iowa or any agency or political 

subdivision thereof. There are no other organizations or agencies whose financial statements should 

be combined and presented with those of the Corporation. 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the Corporation 

includes the Corporation and its component units, Aspire Resources Inc (ARI) and Link Capital 

Partners LLC (Link). 

ARI was incorporated in 2001 to provide services not related to the Corporation’s nonprofit purpose. 

ARI has developed systems and procedures for loan origination and disbursement related processes 

including supporting the functions of electronic data transmissions management, Web reporting, loan 

information delivery, and centralized loan disbursement services. ARI also provides on-going portfolio 

servicing of student loan portfolios. ARI’s board of directors is appointed by the board of the 

Corporation but operates independently with members who are not members of the Corporation’s 

board. ARI is reported as a discretely presented component unit of the Corporation. The June 30 fiscal 

year end of ARI is consistent with the Corporation. The Corporation contracts ARI to disburse and 

service its student loan portfolio. ARI earned loan fee revenue of $13.4 million during 2017 on the loans 

originated and owned by the Corporation. The loan servicing revenue is recorded as a component of 

General and Administrative expenses for the Corporation and Loan Servicing income for the ARI 

component unit on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. ARI also 

services loans for Link; however, loan servicing revenue on Link loans was not significant for 2017. ARI 

and the Corporation share operating costs, with interfund payables/receivables reflecting the net 

activity associated with these shared services. As of June 30, 2017, the Corporation recorded a liability 

of $2.3 million due to ARI and ARI recorded a $2.3 million receivable due from the Corporation related 

to these shared services. There are no separately issued audited financial statements available for 

ARI. 
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Link is a financial services company that offers loan refinancing and consolidation programs for medical 

professionals. The Corporation obtained a majority interest (65.0%) in Link during 2016. Link operates 

independent of the Corporation with a board of directors that is separate and distinct from the 

Corporation’s board. The Corporation presents Link as a discrete component unit of the Corporation as 

it does not meet the blending criteria. The December 31 fiscal year end of Link differs from the primary 

government resulting in differences in intercompany receivables and payables between Link and the 

Corporation. As of December 31, 2016, Link owed the Corporation $1,997,116, which is reported in the 

statements of net position. As of June 30, 2017, the Corporation recorded a receivable of $2,905,801 

due from Link. As of December 31, 2015, Link owed the Corporation $36,000,375, which is reported in 

the statement of net position. As of June 30, 2016, the Corporation recorded a receivable of 

$53,440,417 due from Link. There are no separately issued audited financial statements available for 

Link. 

(b) Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in conformity with 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

(c) Basis of Accounting and Accounting Estimates 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied is the economic resources measurement 

focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are reported when earned and 

expenses are reported at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows 

take place. In preparing the accompanying financial statements, management is required to make 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 

revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

(d) Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months 

or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. 

(e) Investments 

The Corporation carries its investments at fair value based on available market prices. Changes in fair 

value are recorded in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Interest on 

investments is accrued and credited to investment income. 

(f) Student Loans Receivable 

Student loans include loans insured or guaranteed under the Federal Family Education Loan Program 

(FFELP) and private loans (not insured or guaranteed by any state or federal government) both of 

which are made to students or their families for educational purposes. If the Corporation has the ability 

and intent to hold loans for the foreseeable future, such loans are held for investment and carried at 

amortized cost. Loans which are held for investment also have an allowance for loan loss as needed. 
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(g) Allowance for Losses on Loans and Uncollected Interest 

The allowance for loan losses represents management’s estimate of probable losses on student loans. 

This evaluation process is subject to numerous estimates and judgments. The Corporation evaluates 

the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on its FFELP portfolio separately from its private loan 

portfolio. 

The allowance for the FFELP loan portfolio is based on periodic evaluations of the Corporation’s past 

experience, trends in student loan claims rejected for payment by guarantors, changes to federal 

student loan programs, current economic conditions, and other relevant factors. The federal 

government currently guarantees 97% of the principal of and the interest on federally insured student 

loans disbursed on and after July 1, 2006 (and 98% for those loans disbursed prior to July 1, 2006), 

which limits the Company’s loss exposure on the outstanding balance of the Corporation’s federally 

insured portfolio. Federal student loans disbursed prior to October 1, 1993 are fully insured. 

In determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on private loans the Corporation 

considers several factors including: loans in repayment versus those in a nonpaying status, 

delinquency status, type of credit, and trends in defaults in the portfolio based on the Corporations 

historical experience. The Corporation considers a private loan to be in a default status when it reaches 

120 days delinquent or greater. The defaulted loans are further evaluated and disaggregated based on 

delinquency and principal and interest payment history. For defaulted loans, a 100% allowance is 

applied to the outstanding principal balance for the allowance calculation. For all other nondefaulted 

private loans a net allowance percentage based on historical experience is applied to the outstanding 

principal balance. 

For previously defaulted private loans the Corporation will consider modifications to certain loan terms 

in a troubled debt restructuring (TDR). TDR modifications include a reduced interest rate and 

adjustments to the minimum monthly payment amount to improve the likelihood of collection of the 

outstanding principal and accrued interest. These adjusted future payments equate to the TDR loan 

carrying value at the time of the restructuring and only impact future interest revenue. For allowance 

purposes, TDR loans are current at the time of the restructuring. For TDR loans (post restructuring) 

less than 120 days delinquent, a net allowance percentage is applied to the outstanding principal 

balance based on the Corporation’s historical experience. TDR loans that reach 120 days or more 

delinquency are considered defaulted and a 100% gross default factor is applied to the outstanding 

principal balance. 

Student loans are charged off in the event of a borrower’s death, permanent disability, or amounts 

representing the unguaranteed portion of FFELP loans. Additionally, a private loan charge-off is 

recorded when the loan reaches 270 days delinquent without any principal or interest payment activity 

during the previous 12 months. 

The Corporation places TDR private loans on nonaccrual status and the Corporation does not resume 

accrual of interest. Cash receipts on nonaccrual loans are first applied to any accrued and unpaid 

interest before being applied to principal. At June 30, 2017 and 2016, loans totaling $15,214,760 and 

$13,438,797, respectively, were greater than 90 days past due and accruing interest. The Corporation 

assesses accrued and unpaid student loan interest for collectability, and reverses student loan interest 

income in the period in which it is determined that collection is doubtful. The Corporation charges off 
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accrued interest receivable when a loan reaches 270 days delinquent without any principal or interest 

payment activity during the previous 12 months. 

The evaluation of the allowance for loan losses is inherently subjective, as it requires material 

estimates that may be subject to significant changes. The provision for loan losses reflects the activity 

for the applicable period and provides an allowance at a level that the Corporation’s management 

believes is appropriate to cover probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. 

The provision for loan losses represents the periodic expense of maintaining an appropriate allowance 

to absorb probable losses inherent in the portfolio of student loans. Activity in the allowance for loan 

losses, for the year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 is shown below. 

Allowance for Loan Loss Activity

Year ended June 30, 2017

Government

loans Private loans Total

Beginning balance $ 1,045,309  21,440,681  22,485,990  

Charge-offs (23,380) (12,908,875) (12,932,255) 

Recoveries —  1,628,405  1,628,405  

Provision for loan losses (195,121) 7,347,078  7,151,957  

Ending balance $ 826,808  17,507,289  18,334,097  

Ending loan balance $ 555,418,740  761,343,955  1,316,762,695  

Allowance for loan losses as a percentage

of loans 0.15 % 2.30 %

 

Allowance for Loan Loss Activity

Year ended June 30, 2016

Government

loans Private loans Total

Beginning balance $ 1,041,227  29,149,190  30,190,417  

Charge-offs (70,778) (17,218,710) (17,289,488) 

Recoveries —  1,206,294  1,206,294  

Provision for loan losses 74,860  8,303,907  8,378,767  

Ending balance $ 1,045,309  21,440,681  22,485,990  

Ending loan balance $ 639,551,716  745,707,176  1,385,258,892  

Allowance for loan losses as a percentage

of loans 0.16 % 2.88 %
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Delinquencies have the potential to adversely impact the Corporation’s earnings through increased 

servicing and collection costs and account charge-offs. The tables below shows the Corporation’s 

student loan delinquency amounts on loans as of June 30, 2017. 

Portfolio Summary

June 30, 2017

Government

loans Private loans Total

Loans in-school/grace $ 1,113,070  $ 37,715,947  $ 38,829,017  

Loans in deferment and

forbearance:

Deferment 24,690,389  64,502,611  89,193,000  

Forbearance 47,766,017  10,496,313  58,262,330  

Total loans

in-school/

grace, and

deferment

and

forbearance 73,569,476  112,714,871  186,284,347  

Loans in repayment:

Current 447,153,376  92.80 % 576,308,689  88.85 % 1,023,462,065  90.53 %

31–60 days delinquent\ 11,525,016  2.39 9,960,892  1.54 21,485,908  1.90

61–90 days delinquent 7,151,743  1.48 5,603,799  0.86 12,755,542  1.13

91–120 days delinquent 3,745,868  0.78 3,809,746  0.59 7,555,614  0.67

121–180 days delinquent 4,966,854  1.03 896,604  0.14 5,863,458  0.52

181–270 days delinquent 5,378,164  1.12 —  5,378,164  0.48

271 days or grater 0.20

delinquent 1,407,319  0.29 859,438  0.13 2,266,757  

Claims filed but not yet

paid and private loan

defaults 520,924  0.11 51,189,916  7.89 51,710,840  4.57

Total loans in
repayment 481,849,264  100.00 % 648,629,084  100.00 % 1,130,478,348  100.00 %

Total loans $ 555,418,740  $ 761,343,955  $ 1,316,762,695  
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Portfolio Summary

June 30, 2016

Government

loans Private loans Total

Loans in-school/grace $ 1,987,685  $ 29,465,719  $ 31,453,404  

Loans in deferment and

forbearance:

Deferment 64,853,442  40,534,452  105,387,894  

Forbearance 38,357,812  81,849  38,439,661  

Total loans

in-school/

grace, and

deferment

and

forbearance 105,198,939  70,082,020  175,280,959  

Loans in repayment:

Current 497,605,630  93.13 % 604,761,870  89.71 % 1,102,367,500  91.12 %

31–60 days delinquent\ 9,345,403  1.75 8,700,963  1.26 18,046,366  1.49

61–90 days delinquent 7,285,597  1.36 4,828,565  0.70 12,114,162  1.00

91–120 days delinquent 4,755,323  0.89 3,453,935  0.50 8,209,258  0.68

121–180 days delinquent 6,673,986  1.25 672,835  0.10 7,346,821  0.61

181–270 days delinquent 6,416,894  1.20 42,359  0.01 6,459,253  0.53

271 days or grater

delinquent 1,711,394  0.32 832,319  0.12 2,543,713  0.21

Claims filed but not yet

paid and private loan

defaults 558,550  0.10 52,332,310  7.60 52,890,860  4.36

Total loans in
repayment 534,352,777  100.00 % 675,625,156  100.00 % 1,209,977,933  100.00 %

Total loans $ 639,551,716  $ 745,707,176  $ 1,385,258,892  

 

Loan portfolio segments are defined as government loans and private loans. Government loans include 

loans in the FFELP and under the Health Education Assistance Loan Program (HEAL). Private loans 

represent loans for students to fund the attendance of certain post-secondary education institutions and 

these are not guaranteed through any federal program. See additional discussion in note (3) Student 

Loans Receivable. 

(h) Revenue Recognition 

Loan interest is paid by the U.S. Department of Education (the Department) or the borrower, depending 

on the status of the loan at the time of the accrual. In addition, the Department makes quarterly interest 

subsidy payments on certain qualified FFELP loans until the student is required under the provisions of 

the Higher Education Act to begin repayment. 

The Department provides a special allowance to lenders participating in the FFELP. The special 

allowance amount is commercial paper rate or the 1-month London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR) to 

the average daily unpaid principal balance and capitalized interest of student loans held by the 

Corporation. We accrue the special allowance as earned or payable. For loans first disbursed prior to 
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January 1, 2000, the 91-day Treasury Bill rate is used rather than the 3-month financial commercial 

paper rate or the 1-month LIBOR. The Corporation recognizes student loan income as earned. Loan 

income is recognized based upon the expected yield of the loan after giving effect to borrower 

utilization of incentives such as timely payments (borrower benefits) and other yield adjustments. 

(i) Capital Assets 

Furniture, equipment, and leasehold improvements are stated at cost. Depreciation on furniture and 

equipment is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of three to 

ten years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on the straight-line method over the shorter of the 

lease term or estimated useful life of the asset. 

Capital assets had the following activity during the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 

June 30, June 30,

2016 Additions Retirements 2017

Furniture, equipment, and

leasehold improvements $ 37,587,155  2,294,210  9,773  39,871,592  

Less accumulated

depreciation 25,591,605  1,730,925  9,773  27,312,757  

Furniture, equipment,

and leasehold

improvements,

net $ 11,995,550  563,285  —  12,558,835  

 

June 30, June 30,

2015 Additions Retirements 2016

Furniture, equipment, and

leasehold improvements $ 36,963,920  623,679  444  37,587,155  

Less accumulated

depreciation 23,597,188  1,994,428  11  25,591,605  

Furniture, equipment,

and leasehold

improvements,

net $ 13,366,732  (1,370,749) 433  11,995,550  

 

(j) Deferred Revenue 

Refundable origination fees are received by the Corporation at the time of origination of loans. These 

fees are amortized over the life of the loan using the sum-of-the-years-digits method, which 

approximates the interest method. A portion of the fees are refundable to the borrower in the event the 

loan is paid in full prior to the scheduled maturity date. 
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(k) Derivative Products 

During 2012, the Corporation entered into an interest rate swap transaction in connection with the 

issuance of Series 2011A bonds. The interest rate swap will result in a net floating rate obligation to the 

Corporation and is reasonably anticipated to better align the Corporation’s borrowing costs with the 

return on the eligible financed loans. The Corporation is receiving payments based on a fixed rate 

equal to 1.23%. The Corporation is making payments to the counterparty based on a floating rate 

indexed to three-month LIBOR. This agreement has a current notional amount of $230,505,000 that 

amortizes to zero on the final termination date of December 1, 2030. This swap is subject to optional 

cancellation on each interest payment date (without a termination payment), in part or in full, from the 

notional amount down to an amount no less than the minimum notional amount. The minimum notional 

amount will in all cases be less than or equal to the stated notional amount per the amortization 

schedule, and is based on the initial schedule of expected redemptions prior to stated maturity. The 

value of the interest rate swap for 2017 is recorded in other accounts payable and accrued expenses in 

the statement of net position, with accumulated changes in fair value recorded as a deferred outflow in 

the statement of net position. For 2016, the fair value of the interest rate swap is recorded in other 

receivables in the statement of net position, with accumulated changes in fair value recorded as a 

deferred inflow in the statement of net position. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the fair value of the 

swap recorded in the statements of net position was a liability of $3,294,290 and an asset of 

$6,955,529, respectively. In 2017, we recognized $847,621 in expenses recorded through net increase 

in fair value of investments in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position related 

to the change in fair value associated with the over-hedged position of the interest rate swap, resulting 

in deferred inflows of resources for the accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivative on the 

statement of net position $2,446,669 as of June 30, 2017. During the year ended June 30, 2017 and 

2016, the Corporation received payments from the counterparty totaling $756,256 and $2,321,939, 

respectively. This amount is recorded in interest on bonds and notes payable in the statements of 

revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

The fair value of the interest rate swap was estimated using the zero-coupon method. This method 

calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap, assuming that the current forward 

rates implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates. These payments are then 

discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical zero-coupon bonds 

due on the date of each future net settlement on the swap. 

Credit Risk – The Corporation is exposed to credit risk on the hedging instrument to the extent it is in 

an asset position. To minimize the exposure to loss related to credit risk, if the counterparty’s credit 

rating falls below certain minimum levels then the counterparty is required to either post collateral, 

transfer the swap to an eligible transferee, or obtain a guarantee from an eligible guarantor, depending 

on the level of credit downgrade. 

As of June 30, 2017 the swap was in a liability position which means there was no exposure to credit 

risk. As of June 30, 2016 the maximum credit risk exposure was $6,955,529 which represents the 

amount of derivative assets recorded in the statement of net position. The credit ratings of the 

counterparty to the 2011 swap as of June 30, 2017 was A (Fitch Ratings) and A-1 (Standard & Poor’s) 

which was above the minimum level in the swap agreement. The Corporation has no other interest rate 

swap agreements with the counterparty so there are no master netting arrangements in place. 

Additionally, no collateral has been posted by the Corporation or the counterparty. 



IOWA STUDENT LOAN LIQUIDITY CORPORATION 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 and 2016 

 24 (Continued) 

Termination Risk – Upon the occurrence of any default or termination event the swap agreement 

terminates and a termination payment may be required to be made by either the Corporation or the 

counterparty to the other party. The termination payment is based on market quotations and loss 

amounts netted against any unpaid amounts. The 2011 swap agreement is subject to optional 

cancellation on each interest payment date (without a termination payment), in part or in full, from the 

notional amount down to an amount no less than the minimum notional amount. 

Interest Rate and Basis risk – The Corporation is exposed to interest rate risk because the swap 

created synthetic variable-rate debt subject to changes in market interest rates. The Corporation is not 

exposed to basis risk because the debt being hedged is fixed rate. 

Rollover Risk –The Corporation is not exposed to rollover risk, because the maturity date of the swap 

agreements closely matches the amortization period of the assets collateralizing the debt. 

The following table details the estimated future cash flows of the 2011A debt and the 2011 interest rate 

swap using the 3-month LIBOR interest rate in effect at June 30, 2017, without forecasting forward 

changes in that rate and using the amortization schedule in the swap agreement. Future increases in 

the 3-month LIBOR rate could materially affect these expected cash flows. 

Interest rate

Principal Interest swap payments,

payments payments net Total

Year ending June 30:

2018 $ 10,130,000  8,686,553  110,166  18,926,719  

2019 9,880,000  8,258,901  87,289  18,226,190  

2020 12,405,000  7,763,997  73,881  20,242,878  

2021 13,420,000  7,122,959  67,301  20,610,260  

2022 12,155,000  6,495,729  60,785  18,711,514  

2023–2027 75,220,000  21,066,338  193,900  96,480,238  

2028–2032 37,990,000  3,155,988  29,295  41,175,283  

Total $ 171,200,000  62,550,465  622,617  234,373,082  

 

(l) Income Taxes 

The Corporation is a tax-exempt organization as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 

Code, and accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in the accompanying financial 

statements. As such, the Corporation is subject to federal and state income taxes only on any net 

unrelated business income under the provisions of Section 511 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

ARI, a taxable component unit of the Corporation, generated current year income and is using historical 

loss carryforwards to offset it. Income tax expense has been recorded in the general and administrative 

operating expense line in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position along 

with any related tax assets and liabilities in the statements of net position. ARI recorded federal income 

tax expense of $234,178 and $922,902 during the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
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The following summarizes ARI’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2017 and 

2016. 

2017 2016

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 1,410,868  1,416,270  

Deferred tax liabilities:

Capital assets, net (971,348) (744,240) 

Net deferred tax asset $ 439,520  672,030  

 

(m) Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The Corporation holds certain assets that are required to be measured at fair value on a recurring 

basis. These include the Corporation’s investment in United States agency obligations, corporate notes 

and bonds, and money market funds. The Corporation is required to group its assets and liabilities at 

fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the 

reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value. These levels are: 

Level 1 – Valuation is based upon quoted prices for identical instruments traded in active markets. 

Level 2 – Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices 

for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation techniques 

for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market. 

Level 3 – Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use significant assumptions not 

observable in the market. These unobservable assumptions reflect the Corporation’s own estimates of 

assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques 

include use of option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques. 

The Corporation’s investments in money market mutual funds and investments in United States agency 

obligations are valued using quoted market prices for identical instruments traded in active markets, 

and are therefore Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. The Corporation’s interest rate swaps are valued 

using widely accepted valuation techniques based on observable market-based inputs, and are 

therefore in Level 2. Corporate notes and bonds are valued using a model based on significant 

assumptions not observable in the market and are therefore in Level 3. 

ARI holds investments in certain debt securities (United States agency obligations) and are classified 

as held-to-maturity and presented at amortized cost. 

There were no transfers between levels for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 

The Corporation had no nonfinancial assets or liabilities that were recognized or disclosed in the 

financial statements at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. 
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The methods and assumptions used by the Corporation to estimate the fair value of its financial 

instruments not recorded in the financial statements at fair value are set forth below. The fair value 

disclosures of these financial instruments are included in note 7 to the financial statements. 

Student Loans Receivable – The fair value was estimated by modeling loan cash flows using existing 

loan terms and assumptions to determine loan yields, average term, and present value. The discount 

rate is estimated using currently offered yields of similar remaining maturities. 

Accrued Interest Receivable – The carrying amount for accrued interest receivable approximates its fair 

value. 

Bonds Payable – The fair value of bonds payable is calculated by discounting scheduled cash flows 

through maturity using estimated market discount rates. The discount rate is estimated using the rates 

currently offered for debt of similar remaining maturities. 

Notes Payable – The carrying amount for notes payable approximates fair value due to variable 

interest rates. 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses – The carrying amount for accounts payable and accrued 

expenses approximates its fair value. 

Accrued Interest Payable – The carrying amount for accrued interest payable approximates its fair 

value. 

Limitations – Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market 

information and information about the financial instrument. Because no active market exists for a 

significant portion of the Corporation’s financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on 

judgments regarding future expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics 

of various financial instruments, and other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve 

uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates. 

(2) Deposits and Investments 

(a) Cash Deposits and Cash Equivalents 

At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Corporation’s cash deposits of $2,510,171 and $5,043,364, 

respectively, were covered by federal depository insurance or collateralized trust accounts. Cash 

equivalents of $228,499,393 and $95,873,938, respectively, were included in investments in the 

statements of net position for total cash and cash equivalents of $231,009,564 and $100,917,302, 

respectively. 
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(b) Investments 

The following table displays the types of investments, amounts, and the average maturity of the 

investment for the Corporation: 

2017 2016

Average Average

Face amount Fair value maturity Face amount Fair value maturity

United States agency obligations $ —  —  —  $ 23,300,000  23,509,914  1-5 years

Corporate notes and bonds 17,377,414  12,933,848  0–30 years 19,804,551  13,538,612  0-31 years

Money market mutual funds

investing in United States

government and agency

obligations 228,499,393  228,499,393  Less than 1 year 95,873,938  95,873,938  Less than 1 year

$ 245,876,807  241,433,241  $ 138,978,489  132,922,464  

 

ARI’s investments are listed in the following table: 

2017 2016

Amortized Average Amortized Average

cost Fair value maturity cost Fair value maturity

United States agency obligations $ 25,881,357  25,481,252  3-5 years $ —  —  N/A

Money market mutual funds

investing in United States

government and agency

obligations 384,050  384,050  Less than 1 year —  —  N/A

$ 26,265,407  25,865,302  $ —  —  

 

(c) Investment Policy 

Investment portfolio management is the responsibility of the Corporation’s management and staff. The 

Corporation’s board of directors has established a general investment policy and specific bond 

indentures direct investment policy for assets restricted under those bond indentures. 

Qualified investments under the general investment policy include investments in: 

 U.S. Treasury, agency, and instrumentality obligations; interest-bearing time or demand deposits, 

certificates of deposits, and repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements with any 

financial institution provided that such funds are fully insured by an agency of the federal 

government or collateralized at 100% with securities unconditionally and fully guaranteed by the 

U.S. government or collateralized with 102% of nongovernmental securities in this policy. 

 Commercial paper rated, at the time of purchase, at least “P1” by Moody’s, “A1” by S & P, and 

“F-1+” by Fitch. 

 Money market funds and corporate notes rated, at the time of purchase, at least in the top two tiers 

of one of the nationally recognized rating agencies. 
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 Investment agreements or guarantee investment contracts, secured by collateral securities that 

may be entered into with any bank, bank holding company, corporation, or any other financial 

institution whose outstanding: (i) commercial paper is rated, at the time of purchase, at least the 

same as commercial paper above for agreements 12 months or less, (ii) unsecured long-term debt 

is rated, at time of purchase, in the top two rating categories of one of the nationally recognized 

rating agencies, and commercial paper rated the same as above for agreements greater than 

12 months, or (iii) in each case, by an insurance company whose claims paying ability is rated as 

provided in (ii) above. 

All investment purchase orders must be authorized by a Corporate Officer, the Board Chairman, or the 

Board Vice Chairman. 

(i) Concentration Limits 

With the exception of treasury and agency securities, no more than 5% of the overall investment 

portfolio, or 5% of the investment portfolio of any trust estate, may be invested in one asset 

category. 

With the exception of treasury and agency securities, no more than 2% of the overall investment 

portfolio, or 2% of the investment portfolio of any trust estate, may be invested in securities issued 

by or sponsored by the same entity. In no event will more than $10 million in securities owned or 

sponsored by a common entity be owned by the Corporation, with the exception of treasury and 

agency securities. 

Corporate notes and bonds were in compliance with the policy above as of the purchase date of 

those investments. Concentration restrictions were not in place at the time of purchase of the 

current outstanding corporate notes and bonds. 

(ii) Special Considerations 

Commercial Paper: The Corporation may only invest in commercial paper that is fully guaranteed 

by a line of credit or a combination of bond insurance and a liquidity provider, all such entities being 

rated in the top two ratings categories. 

Money Market Funds: The Corporation may only invest in money market funds that: 1. limit their 

investments to those which otherwise conform to this policy, and 2. which include special 

safeguards to collateralize or insure all cash held by the fund. 

Qualified investments under various bond indentures includes any of the following obligations, 

which at the time of investment are legal investments under the laws of the State of Iowa for the 

money proposed to be invested therein: 

(a) Cash held in a trust account or if not held in a trust account insured at all times by the Federal 

Deposit Insurance Corporation or otherwise collateralized with obligations described in 

paragraph (b) below 

(b) Direct obligations of (including obligations issued or held in book entry form on the books of) 

the Department of the Treasury of the United States of America 
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(c) Obligations of any of the following federal agencies, which obligations represent the full faith 

and credit of the United States of America: 

 Export-Import Bank 

 Farm Credit System Financial Assistance Corporation 

 Farmers Home Administration 

 General Services Administration 

 U.S. Maritime Administration 

 Small Business Administration 

 Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) 

 U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (PHA’s) 

 Federal Housing Administration 

(d) Senior debt obligations rated “AAA” by S&P and “Aaa” by Moody’s issued by the Federal 

National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 

(Freddie Mac), or senior debt obligations of other government sponsored agencies approved 

by the Bond Insurer with notice to S&P 

(e) U.S. dollar denominated deposit accounts, federal funds, and banker’s acceptances with 

domestic commercial banks that have a rating on their short-term certificates of deposit on the 

date of purchase of “A-1” or “A-1+” by S&P and “P-1” by Moody’s and maturing no more than 

360 days after the date of purchase. (Ratings on holding companies are not considered as the 

rating of the bank) 

(f) Commercial paper that is rated at the time of purchase in the single highest classification, 

“A-1+” by S&P and “P-1” by Moody’s and which matures not more than 270 days after the date 

of purchase 

(g) Investments in a money market fund rated “AAAm” or “AAAm-G” or better by S&P 

(h) Pre-refunded Municipal Obligations defined as follows: Any bonds or other obligations of any 

state of the United States of America or of any agency, instrumentality, or local governmental 

unit of any such state that are not callable at the option of the obligor prior to maturity or as to 

which irrevocable instructions have been given by the obligor to call on the date specified in the 

notice; and 

(A) Which are rated, based on an irrevocable escrow account or fund (the escrow), in the 

highest rating category of S&P and Moody’s or any successors thereto; and 

(B) (i) which are fully secured as to principal and interest and redemption premium, if any, by 

an escrow consisting only of cash or obligations described in paragraph (b) above, which 

escrow may be applied only to the payment of such principal of and interest and 

redemption premium, if any, on such bonds or other obligations on the maturity date or 

dates thereof or the specified redemption date or dates pursuant to such irrevocable 



IOWA STUDENT LOAN LIQUIDITY CORPORATION 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 and 2016 

 30 (Continued) 

instructions, as appropriate, and (ii) which escrow is sufficient, as verified by a nationally 

recognized independent certified public accountant, to pay principal of and interest and 

redemption premium, if any, on the bonds or other obligations described in this paragraph 

on the maturity date or dates specified in the irrevocable instructions referred to above, as 

appropriate 

(i) Guaranteed investment contracts or surety bonds providing for the investment of funds in an 

account or insuring a minimum rate of return on investments of such funds, which contract or 

surety bond shall: (i) be an obligation of or guaranteed by an insurance company or other 

corporation or financial institution whose debt obligations or insurance financial strength or 

claims paying ability are rated “AAA” by S&P, “Aaa” by Moody’s, and “AAA” by Fitch 

(j) A repurchase agreement that satisfies the following criteria: (i) must be between the trustee 

and a dealer, bank, securities firm, insurance company, or other financial institution described 

as: (A) primary dealers on the Federal Reserve reporting dealer list, which (x) have a long-term 

rating of “AA-“ or better by S&P, “Aa2” or better by Moody’s and “A” or better by Fitch or 

(y) have a long-term rating of “AA-“ or better by S&P, “A” or better by Fitch and “Aa3” or better 

by Moody’s and a short-term rating of “P-1” by Moody’s, or (B) banks, insurance companies, or 

other financial institutions, which (x) have a long-term rating of “AA-“ or better by S&P, “Aa2” or 

better by Moody’s and “A” or better by Fitch or (y) have a long-term rating of “AA-“ or better by 

S&P, “A” or better by Fitch and “Aa3” or better by Moody’s and a short-term rating of “P-1” by 

Moody’s; (ii) the written repurchase agreement must include the following: Securities that are 

acceptable for the transfer are: (A) direct U.S. government, or (B) federal agencies backed by 

the full faith and credit of the U.S. government (and Fannie Mae & Freddie Mac); and (iii) the 

collateral must be delivered to the trustee or third-party custodian acting as agent for the 

trustee by appropriate book entries and confirmation statements must have been delivered 

before or simultaneous with payment (perfection by possession of certificated securities) 

(d) Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a depository institution failure, the Corporation’s 

deposits may not be returned. 

(e) Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty will not fulfill its obligation to the Corporation. The 

Corporation minimizes credit risk by limiting securities to those authorized in the investment policy; 

diversifying the investment portfolio to limit the impact of potential losses from any one type of security 

or issuer; and prequalifying the financial institutions, brokers, dealers, and advisers with which the 

Corporation does business. 

(f) Concentration Risk 

Concentration of risk is the risk of loss that may be attributed to the magnitude of an investment in a 

single type of security. 
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The table below addresses credit risk and concentration risk for the Corporation’s corporate notes and 

bonds at June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
S&P Percentage Percentage

Provider rating* Total of total Total of total

Raven Funding Limited
(formerly Rhinbridge, PLC) A-1+ $ 5,495,590  42 % $ 6,353,731  47 %

Harbour Limited
(formerly Mainsail II, LTD) A-1+ 7,438,258  58 7,184,881  53

Total $ 12,933,848  100 % $ 13,538,612  100 %

* S&P rating at the time of purchase

 

(g) Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates may adversely affect the fair value of the 

portfolio. It is the intent and practice of the Corporation’s management to hold investments to maturity, 

which mitigates interest rate risk. 

(h) Foreign Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely impact the fair value of 

an investment. The Corporation has no positions in foreign currency or any foreign currency 

denominated investments. 

(i) Market Risk 

Due to the level of risk with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes 

in the value of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially 

affect the value of the securities. Recent market conditions have resulted in an unusually high degree 

of volatility and increased the risks with certain investments held by the Corporation which could impact 

the value of investments after the date of these financial statements. 

(3) Student Loans Receivable 

Student loans receivable include eligible student loans acquired by the Corporation that are guaranteed as 

to principal and interest by any guarantor with which the Corporation has an agreement and whose 

guarantee is entitled to federal reimbursement. The loans are reinsured by the United States Secretary of 

Education. Upon default, unpaid principal and accrued interest on FFELP student loans receivable are 

guaranteed by the Federal Government at the following rates: 

Guarantee

Disbursement date of loan percentage

Prior to October 1, 1993 100 %

October 1, 1993–June 30, 2006 98

On or After July 1, 2006 97
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Such guarantees require lenders, servicers, and guarantors to comply with the provisions of the Higher 

Education Act of 1965 and the applicable regulations thereunder. 

In addition, the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended, provides for interest subsidy and special 

allowance payments by the Secretary of Education. The interest subsidy is a payment of interest for those 

loans not in repayment status. The special allowance payment, which continues throughout the loan life, 

provides additional income to holders of student loans or requires a payment to the federal government. 

This allowance is calculated on the unpaid principal balance of student loans, based on an annual rate 

increased by various add-on rates depending upon when the loan was originated. The special allowance 

amount is commercial paper rate or the 1-month London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR) to the average 

daily unpaid principal balance and capitalized interest of student loans held by the Corporation. For loans 

first disbursed prior to January 1, 2000, the 91-day Treasury Bill rate is used rather than the 3-month 

financial commercial paper rate or the 1-month LIBOR. If the special allowance rate is above the loan 

interest rate then a payment is made to the lender from the federal government on the difference. If the 

special allowance rate is below the loan interest rate then the difference is paid to the federal government 

by the lender. 

The Corporation holds loans under the HEAL. The HEAL loans are 100% insured as to principal and 

interest by the Secretary of Education of the United States Department of Health and Human Services. The 

receipt of federal reimbursement payments is subject to compliance with the insurance contracts and the 

requirements of the Federal Public Services Act. Under the HEAL program, borrowers are eligible to pay 

interest at a quarterly reset variable rate based upon the 91-day Treasury bill plus a spread of up to 3%. 

The Corporation also holds private student loans under the Iowa Partnership Loan Program, which are not 

subject to the aforementioned federal guarantees. Private student loans are not insured so the Corporation 

has the full risk of loss. 

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, ARI serviced loans for others in the amount of $1.5 billion and $787 million, 

respectively. 

The Corporation offers on-time repayment incentives to certain borrowers through a reduction in interest 

upon meeting program criteria. 
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A summary of the Corporation’s student loans receivable by loan program at June 30, 2017 and 2016 is as 

follows: 

2017 2016

Federal family education loan program $ 554,281,550  637,911,995  

Health education assistance loan program 1,137,190  1,639,721  

Iowa partnership loan program 761,343,955  745,707,176  

1,316,762,695  1,385,258,892  

Unamortized loan purchase premiums/discounts (1,415,987) —  

Allowance for loan losses (18,334,097) (22,485,990) 

Student loans receivable, net $ 1,297,012,611  1,362,772,902  

 

The weighted average yield on student loans receivable at June 30, 2017 and 2016 was 4.08% and 3.64%, 

respectively. 

A summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 is as 

follows: 

2017 2016

Beginning allowance for loan losses $ 22,485,990  30,190,417  

Provision for loan losses 7,151,957  8,478,767  

Charge-offs (12,932,255) (17,289,488) 

Recoveries 1,628,405  1,206,294  

Ending allowance for loan losses $ 18,334,097  22,585,990  

 

In certain situations, the Corporation may modify repayment terms of defaulted loans in a troubled debt 

restructuring (TDR). TDR loans include defaulted private loans where the borrower has provided certain 

financial information and debt declarations in exchange for future interest rate reductions and/or 

adjustments to the minimum monthly payment amounts. The expected future payments under the modified 

terms are equal to the total outstanding principal and accrued interest balance at the time of modification. A 

summary of the impact on future interest revenue is included in the table below. 

2017 2016

End of year carrying balance of TDR loans $ 40,322,038  37,503,994  

Current year interest income lost on TDR loans 3,344,151  1,919,994  

Current year interest income recorded on TDR loans 152,783  74,684  
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(4) Bonds and Notes Payable 

The bonds and notes payable are limited obligations of the Corporation, payable primarily from the principal 

and interest payments on student loans purchased and originated. The bonds and notes are collateralized 

by and payable only from the student loans, revenues, and recoveries of principal and all amounts held in 

any account established under the bond indenture or note documents. In addition, accounts are restricted 

in accordance with the provisions of the applicable bond indenture or note documents. 

A summary of bonds and notes payable at June 30, 2017 is as follows: 

2017 2016

$168,000,000 student loan asset-backed notes, 2005 Senior Class A-3 (taxable),

final maturity date September 25, 2037 $ 120,842,981  140,576,480  

$35,000,000 student loan asset-backed notes, 2005 Subordinate Class B

(taxable), final maturity date September 25, 2037 20,019,173  23,288,277  

The 2005 Class A-3 and B notes were issued to bear interest at an annual rate

equal to three-month LIBOR plus 0.17%, and 0.35%, respectively. Interest

rate resets will occur on the 25th day of each March, June, September, and

December. Interest rates ranged from 0.81% to 1.65% during 2017 and were

1.47% and 1.65% on June 30, 2017, respectively. Interest rates ranged from

0.46% to 0.99% during 2016 and were 0.81% and 0.99% on June 30, 2016,

respectively. —  —  

140,862,154  163,864,757  

$166,085,000 student loan revenue bonds, Series 2009-1, November 18, 2009 44,100,000  65,200,000  

Less unamortized bond discount (108,369) (134,182) 

$23,255,000 student loan revenue bonds, Series 2009-2, November 18, 2009 23,255,000  23,255,000  

Less unamortized bond discount (57,411) (64,232) 

$40,830,000 student loan revenue bonds, Series 2009-3, November 18, 2009 4,485,000  4,485,000  

Less unamortized bond discount (4,392) (6,583) 

The Series 2009 bonds are term bonds due December 1, 2017 through

December 1, 2031. Interest rates on the bonds range from 4.63% to 5.80%,

based on maturity. Interest accrues and is payable semiannually. Bonds

maturing after December 1, 2020 are subject to early redemption at par value at

the option of the Corporation. In addition, certain bonds issued at a premium

that are optionally redeemed may have an additional redemption price based

on unamortized and outstanding premiums. During 2017, a portion of the bonds

were redeemed early. —  —  

71,669,828  92,735,003  
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2017 2016

$249,000,000 student loan asset-backed notes, 2011-1 Series, November 22, 2011. $ 145,556,756  162,295,504  

Less unamortized discount (7,666,746) (8,548,408) 

The 2011-1 notes were issued to bear interest at an annual rate equal to

three-month LIBOR plus 1.25%. Interest rate resets will occur on the 25th day

of each March, June, September, and December. The interest rate ranged from

1.95% to 2.51% during 2017 and was 2.51% on June 30, 2017. The interest —  —  

rate ranged from 1.53% to 1.85% during 2016 and was 1.85% on June 30, 2016.

137,890,010  153,747,096  

$244,250,000 student loan revenue bonds, Series 2011A-1 November 22, 2011. 82,430,000  118,055,000  

$175,250,000 student loan revenue bonds, Series 2011A-2 November 22, 2011. 88,770,000  108,475,000  

The Series 2011A bonds are term bonds due December 1, 2013 through

December 1, 2030. The interest rates on the bonds range from 3.85% to 5.85%,

based on maturity. Interest accrues and is paid semiannually. Bonds maturing

on or after December 20, 2020 are subject to redemption at the option of the

Corporation at par plus a redemption premium and accrued interest. Also, there

is a special optional redemption from excess revenue at the option of the

Corporation during the recycling period at par plus accrued interest. During 2017,

a portion of the bonds was redeemed early. —  —  

171,200,000  226,530,000  

$521,000,000 student loan asset-backed notes, Series 2012-1 Senior Class A

(taxable), final maturity August 25, 2033 230,552,490  274,862,420  

$10,000,000 student loan asset-backed notes, Series 2012-1 Subordinate Class B

(taxable), final maturity December 26, 2046 10,000,000  10,000,000  

Less unamortized discount (2,819,465) (3,338,812) 

The 2012 Class A and B notes were issued to bear interest at an annual rate

equal to one-month LIBOR plus 0.80% and 3.50%, respectively. Interest rate

resets will occur on the 25th day of each calendar month. Interest rates ranged

from 1.28% to 4.67% during 2017 and were 1.97% and 4.67% on June 30, 2017,

respectively. The interest rates ranged from 0.99% to 3.95% during 2016 and —  —  

were 1.25% and 3.95% on June 30, 2016.

237,733,025  281,523,608  
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2017 2016

$37,800,000 student loan revenue bonds, Series 2015-A May 13, 2015. $ 32,825,000  36,420,000  

Plus unamortized premium 1,866,463  2,300,903  

The Series 2015-A bonds are term bonds due December 1, 2018 through

December 1, 2034. Interest rates on the bonds range from 4.00% to 5.00%,

based on maturity. Interest accrues and is paid semiannually. Bonds maturing

on or after December 1, 2026 are subject to redemption at the option of the

Corporation at par plus a redemption premium and accrued interest. Also, there

is a special optional redemption from excess revenue at the option of the

Corporation during the recycling period at par plus accrued interest. During 2017,

a portion of the bonds was redeemed early. —  —  

34,691,463  38,720,903  

$57,900,000 student loan revenue bonds, Series 2016A-1 October 18, 2016. 57,900,000  —  

$130,850,000 student loan revenue bonds, Series 2016A-2 October 18, 2016. 130,850,000  —  

The Series 2016A bonds are term bonds due December 1, 2017 through

December 1, 2036. Interest rates on the bonds range from 1.35% to 4.84%,

based on maturity. Interest accrues and is paid semiannually. Bonds maturing

on or after December 1, 2027 are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity,

in whole or in part, on any date on or after December 1, 2026, at the option of the

Corporation, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount being redeemed,

without premium, plus accrued interest to the redemption date. —  —  

188,750,000  —  

Total bonds payable, net $ 982,796,480  957,121,367  
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2017 2016

Notes payable:

$2,500,000 promissory note $ 323,939  325,083  

On October 10, 2008, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $2,500,000. Under the agreement, advances were

made to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed during the period

from October 10, 2008 through August 30, 2009. The promissory note

matures on March 31, 2026 and is a limited obligation of the Corporation

payable solely from payments made on the collateralized student loans or

from payments made pursuant to a school guaranty agreement. The interest

rate on outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly and is equal to New York

Prime published on the last business day of the previous calendar quarter

plus 0.50%. The interest rate ranged from 4.00% to 4.50% during 2017 and

was 4.50% on June 30, 2017. The interest rate was 4.00% throughout the

year ended June 30, 2016. —  —  

323,939  325,083  

$400,000 promissory note 35,021  35,021  

On January 6, 2009, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $400,000. Under the agreement, advances were made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed during the period from

January 6, 2009 through August 30, 2009. The promissory note matures

on March 31, 2030 and is a limited obligation of the Corporation payable

solely from payments made on the collateralized student loans or from

payments made pursuant to a school guaranty agreement. The interest rate

on outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly and is equal to New York

Prime published on the tenth calendar day prior to end of the preceding

calendar quarter plus 0.50%. The minimum interest rate is 4.00%. The

interest rate ranged from 4.00% to 4.50% during 2017 and was 4.50% at

June 30, 2017. The interest rate was 4.00% throughout the year ended

June 30, 2016. —  —  

35,021  35,021  
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2017 2016

$400,000 promissory note $ 123,716  123,716  

On January 29, 2009, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $400,000. Under the agreement, advances were made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed during the period from

January 29, 2009 through August 30, 2009. The promissory note matures on

March 31, 2026 and is a limited obligation of the Corporation payable solely

from payments made on the collateralized student loans or from payments

made pursuant to a school guaranty agreement. The interest rate on

outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly and is equal to New York Prime

published on the tenth calendar day prior to end of the preceding calendar

quarter plus 0.50%. The interest rate ranged from 4.00% to 4.50% during 2017

and was 4.50% at June 30, 2017. The interest rate was 4.00% throughout

the year ended June 30, 2016. —  —  

123,716  123,716  

$2,000,000 promissory note 954,812  959,008  

On June 18, 2009, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $2,000,000. Under the agreement, advances were

made to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed during the period

from June 30, 2009 through August 30, 2010. The promissory note matures

on May 31, 2026 and is a limited obligation of the Corporation payable solely

from payments made on the collateralized student loans or from payments

made pursuant to a school guaranty agreement. The interest rate on

outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly and is equal to New York Prime

published on the tenth calendar day prior to end of the preceding calendar

quarter plus 0.50%. The minimum interest rate is 5.00%. The interest rate

was 5.00% throughout the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. —  —  

954,812  959,008  

$200,000 promissory note 90,724  98,526  

On July 31, 2009, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $200,000. Under the agreement, advances were made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed during the period from

July 31, 2009 through August 30, 2010. The promissory note matures on

May 31, 2030 and is a limited obligation of the Corporation payable solely

from payments made on the collateralized student loans or from payments

made pursuant to a school guaranty agreement. The interest rate on

outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly and is equal to New York Prime

published on the tenth calendar day prior to end of the preceding calendar

quarter plus 0.50%. The minimum interest rate is 5.00%. The interest rate

was 5.00% throughout the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. —  —  

90,724  98,526  
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2017 2016

$300,000 promissory note $ 294,153  294,153  

On September 1, 2009, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $300,000. Under the agreement, advances were made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed during the period from

September 1, 2009 through August 30, 2010. The promissory note matures

on May 31, 2027 and is a limited obligation of the Corporation payable solely

from payments made on the collateralized student loans or from payments

made pursuant to a school guaranty agreement. The interest rate on

outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly and is equal to New York Prime

published on the tenth calendar day prior to end of the preceding calendar

quarter plus 0.50%. The minimum interest rate is 5.00%. The interest rate

was 5.00% throughout the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. —  —  

294,153  294,153  

$1,500,000 promissory note 1,134,538  1,146,791  

On March 31, 2010, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $1,500,000. Under the agreement, advances may be

made to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed during the period

from September 1, 2010 through August 30, 2011. The promissory note

matures on March 31, 2027 and is a limited obligation of the Corporation

payable solely from payments made on the collateralized student loans or

from payments made pursuant to a school guaranty agreement. The interest

rate on outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly and is equal to New York

Prime published on the tenth calendar day prior to end of the preceding

calendar quarter plus 0.50%. The minimum interest rate is 5.00%. The

interest rate was 5.00% throughout the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. —  —  

1,134,538  1,146,791  

$82,000,000 promissory note, Series 2011-B 26,561,688  37,302,217  

On October 25, 2011, the Corporation entered into a promissory note. The

promissory note has a final maturity not to exceed October 10, 2031 and is

a limited obligation of the Corporation payable solely from payments made

on the collateralized student loans. The notes were issued to bear interest at

an annual rate equal to three-month LIBOR plus 3.50%. Interest rate resets

will occur on the 10th day of each January, April, July, and October. Interest

rates ranged from 4.13% to 4.66% during 2017 and was 4.66% on June 30,

2017. The interest rates ranged from 3.77% to 4.13% during 2016 and was

4.13% on June 30, 2016. —  —  

26,561,688  37,302,217  
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2017 2016

$9,800,000 commercial loan, Series 2012-A $ 4,373,653  5,641,377  

On July 25, 2012, the Corporation entered into a term credit note. The note

has a final maturity date not to exceed June 30, 2032 and is a limited

obligation of the Corporation payable solely from payments made on the

collateralized student loans. The notes were issued to bear interest at an

annual rate equal to three-month LIBOR plus 3.45%. Rate resets will occur

quarterly each March, June, September, and December. Interest rates

ranged from 4.07% to 4.51% during 2017 and was 4.51% on June 30, 2017.

The interest rates ranged from 3.71% to 4.07% during 2016 and was 4.07%

on June 30, 2016. —  —  

4,373,653  5,641,377  

$300,000 promissory note 61,436  61,916  

On July 15, 2013 the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $300,000. Under the agreement, advances are made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed during the period from

July 31, 2013 through August 31, 2014. The promissory note matures on

June 30, 2038, and is a limited obligation of the Corporation payable solely

from payments made on the collateralized student loans or from payments

made pursuant to a school guaranty agreement. The interest rate on

outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly and is equal to the U.S. Prime

rate published on the tenth calendar day prior to the end of the preceding

calendar quarter plus 0.50%. The interest rates ranged from 4.00% to 4.50%

and was 4.50% on June 30, 2017. The interest rate was 4.00% throughout

the year ended June 30, 2016. —  —  

61,436  61,916  

$300,000 promissory note 268,205  268,205  

On August 1, 2013, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $300,000. Under the agreement, advances are made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed during the period from

August 1, 2013 through August 31, 2014. The promissory note matures on

June 30, 2037, and is a limited obligation of the Corporation payable solely

from the payments made on the collateralized student loans or from payment

made pursuant to a school guaranty agreement. The interest rate on

outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly and is equal to the U.S. Prime

rate published on the tenth calendar day prior to the end of the preceding

calendar quarter plus 0.50%. The interest rate ranged from 4.00% to 4.50%

during 2017 and was 4.50% on June 30, 2017. The interest rate ranged

from 3.75% to 4.00% during 2016 and was 4.00% on June 30, 2016. —  —  

268,205  268,205  
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2017 2016

$750,000 promissory note $ 280,414  280,414  

On April 21, 2014, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $300,000. Under the agreement, advances are made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed prior to August 30, 2015.

The promissory note matures on June 30, 2039 and is a limited obligation of

the Corporation payable solely from payments made on the collateralized

student loans or from payments made pursuant to a school guaranty

agreement. The interest rate on outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly

and is equal to the U.S. Prime rate published on the tenth calendar day prior

to the end of the preceding calendar quarter plus 0.50%. The interest rate

ranged from 4.00% to 4.50% during 2017 and was 4.50% on June 30, 2017.

The interest rate ranged from 3.75% to 4.00% during 2016 and was 4.00%

on June 30, 2016. —  —  

280,414  280,414  

$400,000 promissory note 186,437  186,437  

On July 1, 2014, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $400,000. Under the agreement, advances are made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed prior to August 30, 2015.

The promissory note matures on June 30, 2038 and is a limited obligation of

the Corporation payable solely from payments made on the collateralized

student loans or from payments made pursuant to a school guaranty

agreement. The interest rate on outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly

and is equal to the U.S. Prime rate published on the tenth calendar day prior

to the end of the preceding calendar quarter plus 0.50%. The minimum

interest rate is 4.00%. The interest rate ranged from 4.00% to 4.50% during

2017 and was 4.50% on June 30, 2017. The interest rate was 4.00%

throughout the year ended June 30, 2016. —  —  

186,437  186,437  
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2017 2016

$125,000 promissory note $ 52,171  52,171  

On April 21, 2014, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $125,000. Under the agreement, advances are made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed prior to August 30, 2015.

The promissory note matures on June 30, 2038 and is a limited obligation of

the Corporation payable solely from payments made on the collateralized

student loans or from payments made pursuant to a school guaranty

agreement. The interest rate on outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly

and is equal to the U.S. Prime rate published on the tenth calendar day prior

to the end of the preceding calendar quarter plus 0.50%. The interest rate

ranged from 4.00% to 4.50% during 2017 and was 4.50% on June 30, 2017.

The interest rate ranged from 3.75% to 4.00% during 2016 and was 4.00% on

June 30, 2016. —  —  

52,171  52,171  

$500,000 promissory note 177,552  177,552  

On July 1, 2015, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $500,000. Under the agreement, advances are made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed prior to August 30, 2016.

The promissory note matures on June 30, 2040 and is a limited obligation of

the Corporation payable solely from payments made on the collateralized

student loans or from payments made pursuant to a school guaranty

agreement. The interest rate on outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly

and is equal to the U.S. Prime rate published on the tenth calendar day prior

to the end of the preceding calendar quarter plus 0.50%. The interest rates

ranged from 4.00% to 4.50% during 2017 and was 4.50% on June 30, 2017.

The interest rate ranged from 3.75% to 4.00% during 2016 and was 4.00%

on June 30, 2016. —  —  

177,552  177,552  
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2017 2016

$400,000 promissory note $ 364,626  364,626  

On July 9, 2015, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $400,000. Under the agreement, advances are made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed prior to August 30, 2016.

The promissory note matures on June 30, 2039 and is a limited obligation of

the Corporation payable solely from payments made on the collateralized

student loans or from payments made pursuant to a school guaranty

agreement. The interest rate on outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly

and is equal to the U.S. Prime rate published on the tenth calendar day prior

to the end of the preceding calendar quarter plus 0.50%. The minimum

interest rate is 4.00%. The interest rate ranged from 4.00% to 4.50% during

2017 and was 4.50% on June 30, 2017. The interest rate was 4.00%

throughout the year ended June 30, 2016. —  —  

364,626  364,626  

$80,000 promissory note 33,866  31,552  

On July 17, 2015, the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $80,000. Under the agreement, advances are made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed prior to August 30, 2016.

The promissory note matures on June 30, 2040 and is a limited obligation of

the Corporation payable solely from payments made on the collateralized

student loans or from payments made pursuant to a school guaranty

agreement. The interest rate on outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly

and is equal to the U.S. Prime rate published on the tenth calendar day prior

to the end of the preceding calendar quarter plus 0.50%. The interest rates

ranged from 4.00% to 4.50% during 2017 and was 4.50% on June 30, 2017.

The interest rate was 4.00% throughout the year ended June 30, 2016. —  —  

33,866  31,552  

$450,000 promissory note 229,416  —  

On May 10, 2016 the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $450,000. Under the agreement, advances are made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed prior to August 30, 2017.

The promissory note matures on June 30, 2041 and is a limited obligation of

the Corporation payable solely from payments made on the collateralized

student loans or from payments made pursuant to a school guaranty

agreement. The interest rate on outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly

and is equal to the U.S. Prime rate published on the tenth calendar day prior

to the end of the preceding calendar quarter plus 0.50%. The minimum

interest rate is 4.00%. Interest rates ranged from 4.00% to 4.50% during

2017 and was 4.50% on June 30, 2017. —  —  

229,416  —  
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2017 2016

$350,000 promissory note $ 149,770  —  

On May 20, 2016 the Corporation entered into a promissory note in an

amount not to exceed $350,000. Under the agreement, advances are made

to fund certain private student loans fully disbursed prior to August 30, 2017.

The promissory note matures on June 30, 2040 and is a limited obligation of

the Corporation payable solely from payments made on the collateralized

student loans or from payments made pursuant to a school guaranty

agreement. The interest rate on outstanding advances is adjusted quarterly

and is equal to the U.S. Prime rate published on the tenth calendar day prior

to the end of the preceding calendar quarter plus 0.50%. The interest rate

ranged from 4.00% to 4.50% during 2017 and was 4.50% on June 30, 2017. —  —  

149,770  —  

$8,500,000 commercial loan 8,500,000  —  

On October 12, 2016, the Corporation entered into a loan agreement.

This term credit facility matures on October 12, 2019 and is a limited

obligation of the Corporation paid solely from moneys and securities within

the applicable trust indenture. The note was issued to bear interest at an

annual rate equal to one-month LIBOR plus 2.75% payable monthly.

The interest rates ranged from 3.28% to 3.87% during 2017 and was 3.87%

on June 30, 2017. —  —  

8,500,000  —  

$8,460,000 commercial loan 6,726,312  —  

On December 22, 2016, the Corporation entered into a loan agreement.

This term credit facility matures on April 22, 2020 and is a limited

obligation of the Corporation paid solely from collateralized student loans

The note was issued to bear interest at an annual rate equal to the U.S.

Prime rate adjusted monthly. The minimum interest rate is 3.75%.

The interest rates ranged from 3.75% to 4.00% during 2017 and was 4.00%

on June 30, 2017. —  —  

6,726,312  —  

 



IOWA STUDENT LOAN LIQUIDITY CORPORATION 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 and 2016 

 45 (Continued) 

2017 2016

$8,750,000 commercial loan $ 8,164,773  —  

On April 13, 2017, the Corporation entered into a loan agreement.

This term credit facility matures on February 13, 2021 and is a limited

obligation of the Corporation paid solely from collateralized student loans

The note was issued to bear interest at an annual rate equal to the U.S.

Prime rate with a minimum interest rate of 4.00%. The interest rate was

4.00% throughout 2017 and was 4.00% on June 30, 2017. —  —  

8,164,773  —  

$20,000,000 commercial loan 6,735,547  —  

On June 2, 2017, the Corporation entered into a loan agreement.

This term credit facility has maximum commitment amount of $20,000,000

with allowable advances through October 15, 2017 and a stated maturity

date of July 31, 2022 and is a limited obligation of the Corporation paid

solely from collateralized student loans. The note was issued to bear interest

equal to the 30-day LIBOR plus 2.50%. The interest rate was 3.99%

throughout the year ended June 30, 2017. —  —  

6,735,547  —  

Total notes payable, net $ 65,822,769  47,348,765  

 

The following summarizes the activity in the principal balances of bonds and notes payable for the 

Corporation for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

Due within
June 30, 2016 Additions Reductions June 30, 2017 one year

Bonds payable $ 966,912,681  188,750,000  164,076,281  991,586,400  104,442,017  
Notes payable 47,348,765  32,816,688  14,342,684  65,822,769  14,927,220  

$ 1,014,261,446  221,566,688  178,418,965  1,057,409,169  119,369,237  

 

Due within
June 30, 2015 Additions Reductions June 30, 2016 one year

Bonds payable $ 1,143,737,997  —  176,825,316  966,912,681  111,287,403  
Notes payable 57,866,839  609,379  11,127,453  47,348,765  8,861,476  

$ 1,201,604,836  609,379  187,952,769  1,014,261,446  120,148,879  
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A summary of the scheduled principal and interest payments as of June 30, 2017 is as follows: 

Total

Bond Total principal

maturities principal and Estimated unamortized

and Note Unamortized unamortized interest items and

redemption maturities discounts items costs interest

Year ending June 30:

2018 $ 104,442,017  14,927,220  (1,051,806) 118,317,431  31,393,345  149,710,776  

2019 96,187,824  10,867,628  (1,121,378) 105,934,074  28,224,462  134,158,536  

2020 79,802,836  7,858,230  (1,193,184) 86,467,882  25,655,883  112,123,765  

2021 73,806,949  7,592,840  (1,257,882) 80,141,907  24,164,451  104,306,358  

2022 69,712,844  13,842,283  (1,327,556) 82,227,571  21,028,035  103,255,606  

2023–2027 329,143,543  7,762,098  (2,795,042) 334,110,599  69,024,904  403,135,503  

2028–2032 156,616,450  1,400,901  (39,686) 157,977,665  24,096,307  182,073,972  

2033–2037 54,400,864  241,260  (3,386) 54,638,738  8,332,558  62,971,296  

2038–2042 25,386,999  1,330,309  —  26,717,308  2,619,137  29,336,445  

2043–2047 2,086,074  —  —  2,086,074  311,321  2,397,395  

$ 991,586,400  65,822,769  (8,789,920) 1,048,619,249  234,850,403  1,283,469,652  

 

(5) Retirement Plan 

The Corporation and ARI sponsors a defined contribution retirement plan, the Iowa Student Loan Liquidity 

Corporation 401(k) Retirement Plan, covering all employees who are 18 years of age or older and meet 

length-of-service requirements. Contributions are made at the sole discretion of both the Corporation’s and 

ARI’s board of directors, and are allocated to active participants by the ratio of their compensation to total 

compensation of all active participants. The Corporation and ARI’s contributions for the year ended 

June 30, 2017 were $782,093 and $584,325, respectively. The Corporation and ARI’s contributions for the 

year ended June 30, 2016 were $807,892 and $750,776, respectively. 

(6) Leases 

The Corporation is obligated under a noncancelable operating lease for equipment in the normal course of 

business. Future minimum lease payments under the noncancelable operating leases as of June 30, 2017 

are approximately as follows: 

2018 $ 30,477  

2019 30,477  

2020 30,477  

2021 30,477  

2022 9,147  

Total minimum lease payments $ 131,055  

 

The Corporation had lease expense for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 totaling $41,883 and 

$52,396, respectively. 
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(7) Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Following are disclosures of the estimated fair value of the Corporation’s financial instruments at June 30, 

2017 and 2016: 

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016

Carrying Carrying

amount Fair value amount Fair value

Assets:

Investments $ 241,433,241  241,433,241  132,922,464  132,922,464  

Student loans receivable 1,297,012,611  1,515,978,491  1,362,772,902  1,655,476,229  

Accrued interest receivable 23,090,035  23,090,035  19,086,073  19,086,073  

Deferred outflows of resources:

Accumulated decrease in fair

value of hedging derivative $ 2,446,669  2,446,669  —  —  

 

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016

Carrying Carrying

amount Fair value amount Fair value

Liabilities:

Bonds and notes payable $ 1,048,619,249  1,099,102,011  1,004,470,132  1,097,639,193  

Accrued interest payable 1,986,732  1,986,732  1,722,563  1,730,251  

Other accounts payable and

accrued expenses 6,556,835  6,556,835  2,785,374  2,785,374  

Deferred inflows of resources:

Accumulated increase in fair

value of hedging derivative $ —  —  6,955,529  6,955,529  

Deferred gain on refunded debt 62,984,836  62,984,836  81,663,739  81,663,739  

 

(8) General – Designated Net Position 

The board of directors has designated unrestricted net position for items such as future bond issuances, 

student borrower benefits, and contingent capacity for alternative loans. 

(9) Risk Management 

The Corporation is exposed to various risks related to torts, theft, damage to and destruction of assets, 

errors and omissions, injuries to employees, employee health benefits, and natural disasters. These risks 

are covered by the purchase of commercial insurance. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded 

commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
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(10) Related Party Transactions 

The Iowa College Access Network (ICAN) was previously operated as a division of the Corporation and 

during 2010 was spun-off into a separate unrelated organization. The Corporation’s President and CEO is 

a member of ICAN’s board of directors. During the year, ICAN’s operations were supported through 

contributions from the Corporation. 

The Corporation and ICAN have entered into a contractual administrative services agreement whereas the 

Corporation will provide ICAN support services, including but not limited to accounting and financial 

reporting, payroll processing, human resources, and creative support for promotional and informative 

materials, corporate communications, and public relations. The Corporation will charge a fee for these 

services based on actual cost plus an overhead factor. 

Contributions and support services from the Corporation to ICAN during 2017 and 2016 were as follows: 

2017 2016

Other contributions $ 950,000  950,000  

Administrative service charges 29,098  28,362  

Total $ 979,098  978,362  

 

(11) Subsequent Events 

The Corporation has reviewed subsequent events through October 26, 2017, the date the financial 

statements were available to be issued, and identified the following events or transactions subsequent to 

June 30, 2017 that would require disclosure in the notes to the financial statements. 
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